ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 24, 2003
3:15 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 10

"An Act anending the definition of group health insurance, and
allowing the Departnent of Administration to obtain a policy or
policies of group health care insurance for enployers that are
smal |  businesses, nonprofit organizations, special services
organi zations, or small associations for insurance purposes; and
providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 10

SHORT TI TLE: GROUP HEALTH | NSURANCE FOR PRI VATE GROUPS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HEI NZE, ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0033 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)

01/21/03 0033 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/21/03 0033 (H L&C, HES

01/21/03 0033 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COWMMERCE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 24, 2003



01/ 29/ 03 0088 (H) COSPONSOR( S):  HAWKER

02/ 07/ 03 0152 (H COSPONSOR( S): FOSTER, STEVENS
02/ 07/ 03 0152 (H W LSON, SEATON

02/ 10/ 03 0172 (H) COSPONSOR( S) :  EYHRAUCH

02/ 14/ 03 0218 (H COSPONSOR( S):  MOSES

02/ 18/ 03 0231 (H) COSPONSOR( S):  KERTTULA

02/ 24/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEI NZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor of HB 10.

HELEN BEDDER, M D., Staff

to Representative Cheryll Heinze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 10.

MARI E DARLI N, Coordi nat or

Capital Gty Task Force

AARP Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 10.

BOB TAYLOR, Acting Executive Director

Al aska Conm ssion on Agi ng

Di vision of Senior Services

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 10.

KEVI N MURPHY, Presi dent

Subst ance Abuse Directors Associ ation of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 10.

PAMVELA LaBOLLE, President

Al aska State Chamber of Commrerce (ASCC)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 10.

GQUY BELL, Director

Di vision of Retirenment & Benefits
Department of Adm nistration

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 24, 2003



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Descri bed how the division would inplenent
HB 10 if it passed.

DUSTY SI LVA
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Questioned the feasibility of HB 10.

MARY RAYMOND

Honmer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Appl auded the intent of offering insurance
t hrough HB 10.

JAMES FI SHER

Kenai Peni nsul a Food Bank;

Sol dot na Seni or Center

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described the need for affordable health
benefits for enployees of nonprofit organizations during the
hearing on HB 10.

JEFF JESSEE, Executive Director

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the trustees support the
intent of HB 10 but have not yet commtted start-up funds.

BOB HAGEN

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expressed concern that the pool proposed in
HB 10 woul d not succeed.

STEPHEN CONN
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 10.

JUDY M LLER

Val dez, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on the need for insurance
coverage for sole proprietor businesses during the hearing on
HB 10.

KATIE CAMPBELL, Life & Health Actuary

Di vi sion of |nsurance

Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCED)
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 24, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered insurance questions during the
di scussi on of HB 10.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-12, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Committee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Gatto, Crawford, and Guttenberg were present at
the call to order. Representatives Dahlstrom and Rokeberg

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 10- GROUP HEALTH I NSURANCE FOR PRI VATE GROUPS

Number 0050

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 10, "An Act anending the definition of group
heal th insurance, and allowi ng the Departnment of Adm nistration
to obtain a policy or policies of group health care insurance
for enpl oyers t hat are smal | busi nesses, nonprofit
or gani zati ons, speci al services or gani zati ons, or snal
associations for insurance purposes; and providing for an
effective date."

The conmittee took an at-ease from3:17 to 3:18 p. m
Number 0078

REPRESENTATI VE CHERYLL HEI NZE, Al aska State Legislature, as one
of two joint sponsors of HB 10, testified that HB 10 allows
smal | busi nesses, nonprofits, and others groups to join a pool
for a health insurance plan. The Departnment of Admi nistration
woul d obtain the policy, and then enployers would purchase the
i nsurance through the private plan. The legislation also
permts the recovery of the initial cost for setting up the
group. She said the cost recovery would be spread over a five-
year period, and the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
("Mental Health Trust") would provide the upfront noney.

Number 0170
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, the second joint sponsor, noted a small

change in the conmttee substitute (CS) in the nenbers' bil
packets.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 24, 2003



Number 0197

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt the proposed CS for HB
10, Version 23-LS0030\I, Craver, 2/12/03, as a work draft.
There being no objection, Version | was before the conmttee.

Number 0243

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that the proposed CS contained
a new sentence on page 5, lines 4-6, which read: "The
conmm ssioner shall distribute the admnistrative costs recovered
pro rata to any funds, including the nental health trust
settlenment income account, from which initial funding was nade."
He said this is the only change in the proposed CS and was added
at the request of the Mental Health Trust to clarify the source
of the [start-up] funds for this legislation. He suggested that
Quy Bell, Director, Di vision of Reti renment & Benefits,
Departnment of Administration, can explain his division's costs
and the amount the Mental Health Trust would contribute.

Number 0369

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked why the state is getting involved in
insurance for private businesses when the private sector
provi des this product.

Number 0407

HELEN BETTER, MD., Staff to Representative Cheryll Heinze,
Al aska State Legislature, explained that HB 10 is based on a
nodel , which assenbles an insurance plan for snmall businesses.
Currently, Alaska law allows political subdivisions to work with
the state in developing an insurance plan simlar to the one in
this bill. Political subdivisions such as Kotzebue and None are
using a health insurance plan that is adm nistered by the state.
She said it's inportant for the [State of Alaska to be involved
as an organizer] because it has been inpossible for smal

businesses to gain health insurance on their own. State
governnent can create [a program and spread the cost over a
| arge group of people. She said even if the state cannot

significantly lower the cost of the insurance, it may be able to
arrange better options for the small businesses and nonprofits.

Nunmber 0545

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG comended Representative Gatto's
guestion and explained the rationale behind HB 10. He reported

that there are precedents for this bill in Alaska statutes and
el sewhere; Alaska has a small group provision in its health
i nsurance statutes. It's challenging for these snmall

enterprises, particularly nonprofit organizations that have
difficulty finding insurance coverage, to form a |arger pool
Last year the l|legislature passed a bill enabling MEWA (Multiple
Enmpl oyers Welfare Associations); MEWA is a federal provision
that allow groups or businesses wth certain affinities to form
self-insurance with |ower than normal solvency requirenents. He
stated that trade organizations throughout the country pool
t oget her for insurance purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said HB 10 has two goals: to lower the
cost of nonthly premuns and to expand the options that are
avai lable to these folks. There could be an econony plan, a
Chevy plan, and perhaps a Cadillac plan. A very small group or
an individual business or nonprofit organi zation cannot get this
type of coverage.

Number 0750

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cautioned people against expecting too
much from HB 10. He said the legislature and everyone in this
country wants to find the magic solution to lower health
i nsurance prem uns. He declared that health costs are a
continually growing part of an individual's budget and the
country's gross donestic product. If the legislature can help
citizens lower these costs, this is a small step forward. He

said the Mental Health Trust agreed to fund the start-up because
of the large nunber of nonprofit organizations wth whom they
deal that are unable to obtain insurance at a reasonable rate.

Nunmber 0835

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG returned to Representative @Gtto's
guestion. He explained that HB 10 does not involve the state in

t he insurance business. In this case, the state would invite a
group of different [enterprises] to forma pool; the state would
be nerely the conduit. The state would develop the bid process
that would go out to private insurance underwiters. The state
woul d not underwite nor pay for the insurance. House Bill 10
woul d not expand the state health insurance program to other
fol ks. Once this program gets established, it would be self-

financed and operated al nost entirely by the private sector.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 24, 2003



Representative Cissna joined the committee.
Nurmber 0894

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE reiterated that the state, through the
Mental Health Trust, would fund the upfront costs, which would
be paid back. This is a big hel ping hand, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO observed that if the state is nerely a
conduit for gathering people together, that role is unnecessary

because individuals can do that thensel ves. He said the state
has a poor record of taking on projects to help others; many
such projects ended in a deficit. He said the bill goes way

beyond gathering the nanes of interested individuals and letting
sonmeone bid on the service.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE expl ai ned that the project is not quite so
sinplistic, that the state doesn't just gather the nanes. The
state would prepare the project for bid, and then the two
conpanies in Alaska that underwite small group health insurance
policies would bid on it.

Nunmber 1063

DR. BETTER expl ai ned that soneone has to develop the plan. The
state would develop the plan as it did for the political
subdi visions. The state would design a plan that works for the
i nsurance conpanies and works for the individuals in the pool

and then it would cone up with a cost. Insurance plans can vary
from mniml to extensive coverage; they are not sinple
docunents. When an individual seeks insurance, an insurance

agent or broker would lay out potential plans, and then the
i ndi vi dual would make a decision. No one is currently providing

this service [to business and nonprofits as a group]. Agencies
like United Way have not been able to assenble a |arge enough
pool . She said that's why the sponsors included smal

busi nesses and ot her associations in this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO cautioned that the state would be actively
approachi ng insurance conpanies, getting bids, and signing up
individuals at different |evels of risk. He recalled the Delta
Barley projects and the M. MKinley Dairy Farnms, in which the
state lost its investnent. He said he is concerned that the
state won't [recoup its noney].

Nunber 1245

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he shares Representative @Gtto's
concerns about governnent adventures in private enterprise. He
said the legislature's real power is derived from the purse.
The state would venture $42,900, |less than the cost of one door
in one [grain] silo. The additional $89,900 would cone fromthe

Mental Health Trust, which is not general fund noney. The
provisions of the bill allow for the recoupnent of all these
funds, in the underwiting cost of the third-party adm nistrator
or the insurance underwiter. The words "nay obtain insurance"

allows the departnent to avoid entering into any insurance
contracts. He said the sponsors do not intend to get the State
of Alaska into the insurance market anynore than it already is,
for exanple, providing the structure for the political
subdivisions to operate their insurance plans. There are
provisions in the insurance statutes now that allow groups to
get together to do sone of their own underwiting and becone

sel f-insured. However, that rarely happens. As indicated in
past public testinony, a large nunber of people in this state
are interested in joining a pool. Combi ning nonprofits wth
some small businesses creates a bigger base and hopefully

realizes sonme econom es not possible otherw se.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cautioned that this conmttee needs to
be concerned about the bill's inpact on the small business
i nsurance group market. He stressed that this is no socialized
medicine plan in sheep's clothing because with $42,000, the
| egi sl ature cannot do a | ot of danmage.

Number 1390

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD decl ared that he supports HB 10, which
he characterized as a great first step. He expressed concern
that it |eaves single-person conpanies out of the equation. He
asked why the legislation only addresses conpanies with 2 to 50
enpl oyees.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE answered that HB 10 uses the definition
for small business in AS 21.54.500, which is at |east 2 but not
nore than 50 enpl oyees.

DR. BEDDER said that the definition [in HB 10] is traditionally
used throughout the United States. A single individual who has
not been able to obtain affordable health insurance would be
interested in joining this plan because there would be no limt
on pre-existing illnesses or conditions. Therefore, this
feature would draw persons with particularly difficult insurance

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 24, 2003



i ssues, which would create a higher risk pool, resulting in
hi gher prem uns.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD noted that the state already has a high-
risk pool, the Al aska Conprehensive Health | nsurance Association
(ACHIA). He suggested that the bill direct those [single-person
busi nesses] with serious pre-existing conditions into the ACH A
pool while the other [entities] would cone in under this pool.
He cautioned that |eaving out single operators wthout health
probl ens excludes a | arge segnent of the popul ation.

Nunmber 1568

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE warned about the need to [develop a
suitable plan on which insurance conpanies would bid]. The
Al aska [insurance market] is unique because of the state's snall
[ popul ati on], she said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that individuals can join
the ACHI A pool [for health insurance coverage] and it was thus
not necessary to include individual businesspersons in HB 10.
He noted his proposed anendnent that narrows the scope of

eligibility for the pool. Narrowing the risk pool would
encourage health insurance underwiters to enter the market in
Al aska, not |eave it. Currently, the state has three nmgjor
underwriters that carry nore than 52 percent of the nmarket. He
expl ained that the small business policies anmobunt to 55 percent
of the market. Represent ati ve Rokeberg echoed the need to be
sensitive about Al aska's market condition. |[If HB 10 is expanded
and made open-ended, [the State of] Al aska would be conpeting
agai nst the industry. He cautioned that if [the |egislature]
isn't careful with this bill, the state will [end up with] a

singl e insurance underwiter.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD said he understood [the market problen,
but asked if [healthy single proprietors] could be brought into
this pool. He reiterated his concern about excluding healthy
single proprietors.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that going into the individual
mar ket woul d al nost certainly inmpact the nunber of underwiters

witing business in the state. He explained that the fifty
underwiters in the state that do wite [ ow prem um policies are
the ones witing individual policies. Expanding HB 10 to

i ndi vi dual busi ness people would risk running 50 insurers out of
the state at one tine, he warned.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 24, 2003



Nunber 1847

CHAI R ANDERSON directed attention to the sponsor statenment which

reads, "The intent of this bill is to provide quality health
insurance by creating a large pool of covered lives, and
generate nore choice of coverage not a |lower cost." However, he
noted that docunent also includes the follow ng sentence: "The
entities described in this legislation often cannot afford to
provi de enpl oyees with adequate health insurance coverage." He

asked if the purpose of HB 10 is to lower costs, offer nore
choi ce, or both.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE answered "probably both." She expressed
hope that nore accessible and nore affordable coverage could be
provided to small businesses through this |egislation.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that one of his constituents fromthe Al aska
Association of Health Underwiters has expressed sone salient
concerns in a letter. He quoted the letter as foll ows:

Entities that are already experiencing affordable
rates in the private nmarket due to low loss ratios
wll not be interested in joining the pool. However,
unhealthy small enployer groups wth bad nedical
experience and high clainms could flock to a state plan
with |ow rates. These groups might initially benefit
from lower rates, but eventually the state pool wll
be forced to react to the bad clains experienced from
these groups and increase premuns. Oher states that
have i npl enented such pools have found that rates for
smal | er businesses did not drop over tine. | nst ead
they have remained the sanme or higher than the
traditional small group market.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that he agreed with that analysis.
He said that HB 10 doesn't specify a higher standard or
threshold and thus runs the risk [described in the above quote].

Bringing nonprofits and small busi nesses together would
hopefully spread the risk to a larger covered life pool, he
sai d.

CHAI R ANDERSON remarked that Representative Rokeberg's proposed
amendnent covers sone of the concerns expressed in the letter
fromthe Al aska Association of Health Underwiters.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agr eed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 24, 2003



Nunber 2044

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Capital City Task Force, AARP Al aska,
noted that the commttee's bill packet should include a letter
of support for HB 10. She said ARRP's main concern is for
nonprofit agencies that are having difficulties offering their
enpl oyees health insurance, which is necessary to retain staff.
She said the letter also conveyed AARP s concern for many
citizens who don't have health insurance at all.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked whet her nonprofits such as Native
associ ations, which may be eligible under other progranms, could
be covered under this plan al so.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that he would research that
guesti on.

Nunmber 2138

BOB TAYLOR, Acting Executive Director, Al aska Conm ssion on
Agi ng, Di vi sion of Seni or Servi ces, Depart ment of
Adm ni stration, announced support for this |egislation. When

the comm ssion wote a state plan covering the years 2003-2007,
staff held a series of hearings throughout Al aska in order to
obtain public comment on key issues to senior citizens. He said
there was a lot of public comment related to this state plan,

and workforce issues cane up repeatedly. The state plan
advocates for systens and strategies that wll help senior
citizens stay in their comunities and honmes as |long as
possi bl e. This aging-in-place system is conposed of many hone

and community services such as adult day care and personal
servi ces. He said the Comm ssion on Aging strongly supports HB
10 to the extent that it would provide health insurance for
those nonprofits and small businesses.

Number 2250

KEVIN MJURPHY, President, Substance Abuse Directors Association
of Al aska (SADA), noted that SADA represents approximtely 44
prograns across the state. He announced that SADA is in favor
of HB 10, although SADA had hoped it would nake available
i nsurance for many of SADA' s nenbers who can't currently afford
heal th i nsurance. He said that he hoped the passage of HB 10
woul d stemthe flow of personnel fromthe field.

Nunber 2310

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 24, 2003



PAMELA LaBOLLE, President, Al aska State Chanber of Conmerce
(ASCC), testified in support of HB 10. She related that the
[inability to assess health insurance] has been a significant
probl em for small businesses. She infornmed the commttee that
ASCC is a nonprofit and until three years ago, ASCC was covered
through the Anmerican Chanber of Conmerce executives in a
nati onwi de pool for which John Hancock was the provider.
However, John Hancock pulled out of Al aska, and ASCC has been
searching for conparable and affordable insurance. Currently,
ASCC has a policy with a high deductible. Ms. LaBolle
enphasi zed that ASCC is just one exanple. She noted that she
has a professional position to fill, and there have been sone
i nterested candi dates. Al t hough ASCC is conpetitive with its
salary, the health insurance is not conpetitive.

TAPE 03-12, SIDE B
Nunmber 2365

M5. LaBOLLE indicated that the Jlack of accessible health
i nsurance for small enployers elimnates them from conpetition
in the job market. This situation is comon throughout the
state, she said. [ Having health insurance available for smal
busi nesses] is one of ASCC s top priorities, she added.

Nunber 2342

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nenti oned his concern with the inpact of
HB 10 on the conpetitive marketpl ace. Represent ati ve Rokeberg
expressed concern that w thout an anendnent, the state nay |ose
one or nore of its mpjor underwiters.

M5. LaBOLLE agreed that Alaska is a small pool for these
nati onal conpani es. She noted that a recent Departnent of
Health & Social Services survey showed that the costs of nedica
services in Alaska is 25 percent higher than elsewhere in the
nati on. For those reasons, Alaska is not an attractive place
for insurance conpanies to do business. Because [ASCC] doesn't
want to run anyone else out of the state, she suggested an
exenption [from certain nmandates] for insurance conpanies that
of fer coverage to businesses up to a certain size. She observed
that although nmandates are inportant, one nust review whether
those mandates are cutting Al aska out of the insurance narket.

Nunber 2230

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 24, 2003



GQUY  BELL, Director, Division of Retir ement & Benefits,
Departnment of Administration, informed the conmttee that the
division would run the program HB 10 were to pass. Thi s
| egi slation would allow the comm ssioner, through the division

to obtain fully insured health insurance policies to cover
qualified entities. He said that qualified entities are defined
as Alaska small businesses that enmploy 2 - 50 eligible
enpl oyees, Al aska nonprofit organizations, sole proprietorships
or corporations that operate childcare facilities, residential
childcare facilities, foster hones, assisted living facilities,
or provide adult daycare or hone care services.

MR. BELL explained that under HB 10, the conm ssioner would be
given quite a bit of discretion in designing policies. No state
subsidy would be involved. Only seed noney woul d be avail abl e,
and it would be used to work with interested groups devel oping
t he pl ans. He explained that the division envisioned using a
benefits consultant who would work wth focus groups through
surveys in order to develop plan design options and a request
for proposals (RFP). The division would choose the best price
bid from those products offered; nost likely, he said, there
woul d be multiple policies.

Number 2125

MR. BELL advised that the nost likely types of plans would be
"first dollar" plans, policies in which [the plan] would cover
up to a certain amount of medical expenses and nothing beyond,
wi th the understanding that these nonprofits and others woul d be
able to obtain catastrophic coverage el sewhere. The
catastrophic or major nedical plan could be chosen and thus [the
pl an] wouldn't cover the first $5,000 in clainms but would cover
the costs beyond that. He said there could also be a
conprehensive policy, simlar to a standard plan wth a
deducti bl e and co-pay requirenent.

MR. BELL explained once those plans were in place, qualified
entities would be allowed to cone to the comm ssioner and apply

to participate. Once the authorization was given, the group
woul d be passed on to the insurance conpany, which would provide
the entire service. At that point, the service, the prem um
collection, and the Iliability would be in the hands of the

i nsurance conpany. He noted that [HB 10] includes a requirenent
that the cost of inplenentation be recovered, and the division's
pl an mai nt enance woul d be paid through the plan prem uns.

Number 2067

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about pooli ng.

MR. BELL commented that the state may have sone role in creating

a pool, and it could use that econonmy of scale to nmake the
i nsurance avail able and perhaps nore affordable. He said the
phi | osophical question is how that pooling arrangenent 1is
devel oped -- whether by the insurance conpany or by the state.

M. Bell suggested that the idea behind HB 10 is that value can
be added by the state setting up this pool.

Nunber 2017

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG appl auded the sponsors of HB 10. He
pointed out that the bill involves private industry, the
i nsurance underwiters, and the state. He pointed out that the
fiscal note shows the cost for hiring a consultant; no pool of
[state] noney would be set up. He asked why this market isn't

nore attractive to underwiters. He noted that the pool would
have many high-risk people in it, causing the [insurance
conpanies] to pull out. Representative Quttenberg said that he

was trying to [identify the advantages] of the private sector or
the state [devel opi ng such a pool].

Number 1929

MR. BELL answered that part of the answer involves the
division's flexibility in working with the groups on plan
desi gn. He said that other states have devel oped plans simlar
to that proposed in HB 10, and they have reviewed sone unusual
and creative plan designs. There is no guarantee that this pool
wi Il be successful, he said; one nust be realistic in what m ght
be achieved. He said that nedical insurance is becomng nore
costly and less available, and HB 10 is an effort to address
that. The question is whether HB 10 is worth a small anount of
seed noney and sone effort to see if this pool can work in
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stressed that in the private sector an
i ndi vidual or very small conpany cannot buy insurance that is

[conparable to large group health insurance]. He related his
own experience 10 years ago in the private sector, seeking
i ndi vidual insurance coverage. He was paying a premum after

the age of 50, of over $800 a nonth for a no-frills plan with a
$5, 000 deducti bl e. He received |ess coverage then than he does
now as a legislator, and it cost nore 10 years ago than his
current coverage. He credited these factors to the |arge group

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 24, 2003



di scount . He explained that wth large groups, there are
vari ous nethodol ogies available to drive costs down. He said
the point of HB 10 is to provide a pool for small businesses and
nonprofit organizations, giving them access to the |ower cost
pl ans that have nore options.

Nunber 1755

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that in a |large group plan, everyone
is included: the healthy and young, and a few of the ol der and
si ck. However, if such a group is reduced to individuals, he
predicted [problenms would arise]. In the exanple of auto
i nsurance, high-risk individuals with driving violations would
be attracted to the pool. When that happens, the insurance
conpany would seek balance wth good drivers, however, he
guestioned whether good drivers would join the pool and
voluntarily pay a higher premum Representative Gatto asked if
the state, with passage of HB 10, would be part of the program
He said if the state has nothing at risk, then the plan won't
wor k.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that Representative Rokeberg's
story is a perfect exanple of why this [bill] is necessary.
This pooling would have allowed Representative Rokeberg and
others to pool for affordable health care. He refuted the
notion that only unhealthy individuals would enter the pool. He
stressed that health care insurance in the US. is obtained
t hrough enpl oyers and thus there needs to be a group for snall
enpl oyers and nonprofits in order for the overall system to
work. Qtherw se, many people are left [w thout insurance].

Nunber 1557

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE rel ated that she is paying al nost $1,000 a
nonth for insurance. There are hundreds of individuals doing
the sanme, she said. The point of HB 10 is [to provide coverage]
wWith mniml risk.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG turned to the fiscal note.

MR. BELL explained that the first year of costs is higher than
subsequent years, due to inplenmentation issues. The total cost
is estimated at $132, 800. He noted that |ast year the Mental
Health Trust had offered to contribute $89,900 to [inplenent a
simlar bill which did not pass the |egislature].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG addressed Representative Gatto's concern
about the lack of an exit strategy if the plan isn't working
He asked if the departnent would favor an exit strategy in the
bill.

MR, BELL answered that an exit strategy would be addressed
through the contract and the RFP. The departnment would consult
with the attorney general's office to insure that the contract
protected the state and allowed for an exit strategy. He said
he wasn't sure whether the |language in the legislation has to be
nodi fied to acconplish that.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if intent |anguage could include
[an exit strategy].

MR. BELL said that sounds reasonabl e.
Nunber 1282

DUSTY SILVA informed the committee that although she is
testifying on her own behalf, she works in the insurance
industry and is a nenber of the Al aska Association of Health
Underwriters. Ms. Silva said that she has reviewed the state's
heal th benefit program which covers 5,500 state enployees, not

including their dependents. The state's premum plan has a
nonthly rate of $1,102 and the econony plan costs $716 per
nont h. [Gven the size of those premuns under a |arge group
pl an], she questioned how this bill would work.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE responded that other states have been very
successful [with this type of pool], although she acknow edged
that sonme states have not. The Health Insurance Plan of
California has done this [and been successful] as has the
Connecti cut Business and Industry Association. She related that
HB 10 would not offer lower premuns but would rather make
i nsurance avail able for people to purchase.

M5. SILVA said that small enployers can purchase insurance, but
the rates are based on the denographics of the group.
Therefore, a younger healthier group would have |ower rates than

a group with older and unhealthy individuals. Therefore, the
heal t hy people in the pool subsidize the premuns for those who
are not so healthy. She asked if HB 10 is trying to |ower
prem uns.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said she hoped that the rates would be
| owered through this pool. However, the main reason for the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 24, 2003



|l egislation is to offer sonething to people who can't get
i nNsurance now.

M5. SILVA said that she reviewed the California [pool], which
she di scovered offered subsidies to the enployers as well.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE offered to research that nodel

Nunber 1037

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether HB 10 would prevent an
underwiter who carries an enployer with high-risk enployees

from droppi ng that enpl oyer.

M5. SILVA replied no and pointed out that such an action cannot
be done now.

Nunmber 0963

MARY RAYMOND infornmed the conmttee that she is the coordinator
of a small assisted-living hone. She appl auded the efforts to

of fer health insurance. She said that offering this to small
busi nesses and nonprofits doesn't necessarily nmean that it wll
[enrol | enployees who are] old and sick. She cited a report

that the U S. Departnent of Health & [Human] Services will fund
three to five states for 10 years to cover virtually everyone in
the state, if the state proposes a good pl an.

Nunber 0731
JAMVES Fl SHER, Kenai Peni nsul a Food Bank; Sol dotna Seni or Center,

informed the commttee that both of these groups need help
offering their enployees group health insurance at an affordable

cost. He pointed out that |ack of such health benefit coverage
| eaves the supervisors wth a nagging concern for their
enpl oyees. He said the lack of such health insurance is

considered by sone people to be exploitation of enployees. M.
Fisher urged the legislature to craft an appropriate sol ution.

Nunmber 0660

JEFF JESSEE, Executive Director, Alaska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority (AWMHTA), applauded the efforts of the bill's sponsors.
He said that at this point, the trustees have not officially
authorized trust incone to be used for this |legislation. He
explained that the trustees want the current admnistration to
evaluate this issue and this |egislation. He noted that during

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 24, 2003



Gover nor Mur kowski ''s  canpai gn, he identified the  health
insurance crisis as an inportant issue on which he intended to

take action. M. Jessee noted that he has encouraged the
admnistration to create a group to review this issue and this
| egi sl ati on. M. Jessee said that the trustees are very

supportive of the legislation's intent and want to be part of
any solution addressing these issues. However, no one wants to
rai se expectations beyond what is reasonable or to take an undue
risk with trust resources.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether the trustees would fund
100 percent of the fiscal note if the governor blessed HB 10.

MR. JESSEE said that he could not speak for the trustees,
al though he related his belief that the trustees would be nore
interested in a sharing of the contribution and thus the risk.
However, he said he wouldn't rule out a different |evel of
contribution, particularly wth the state's current fiscal
situation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rem nded M. Jessee that a general fund

fiscal note mght have a negative inpact [on the bill's
passage] . He said the [pool] could be set up like a |oan. He
request ed M. Jessee's help in avoiding general fund

expendi t ures.

MR. JESSEE nentioned that the trust is prepared to do what it
can to see that legislation acconplishing these goals is
successful .

Nunber 0321

BOB HAGEN said he was testifying on his own behalf but is an
i ndependent insurance agent. M. Hagen noted that he has
studi ed health insurance purchasing cooperatives such as the one
proposed [in HB 10]. M. Hagen said that he is convinced that
purchasing pools will not do any good. He said several studies
have shown that purchasing pools have had a negative inpact on
the insurance rates in the states that have tried this. None of
the studies found that the purchasing cooperative rates were
| ower than those on the open nmarket nor did they increase the
avai lability of insurance. He pointed out that since the early
1990s, groups have been guaranteed access regardl ess of whether
t hey are purchasing cooperatives. However, he acknow edged t hat
purchasi ng cooperatives have increased choice in states wth
heal th mai ntenance organi zations (HMOs). For exanple in
California, the cooperative premuns are about eight percent

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 24, 2003



hi gher than those on the general market; but this [arrangenent]
is noderately successful because it offers choice. However,
this scenario isn't applicable in Al aska [because there are no
HVOs], he said.

Nunber 0178

MR. HAGEN stated that it's not true that large group rates are
al ways |ower than small group rates. If one reviews the plans
of the State of Alaska and NEA-AK [ National Educati on
Association - Al aska], one wll find that the per contract

charges are higher than many of the rates in the small group
mar ket s. M. Hagen pointed out that 80-90 percent of a group

prem um goes to pay clainms, and pooling doesn't reduce that. He
expl ained that by conbining 100 three-person groups, there are
still 100 groups not one 300-person group. The availability of

nondi scrimnatory rates is already guaranteed by AS 21.56 [ Snal
Enpl oyer Health Insurance], and the D vision of Insurance is
doing a good job enforcing it, he opined. He advised that if
the legislature doesn't think the division is doing a good job,
then it should | ook there rather than creating |egislation that
may add conplexity to the regulatory job. M. Hagen said that
it is instructive to review the profit margins of the conpanies
that wite [policies] in Alaska: Blue Cross has a profit margin
of 1.2 percent, and AETNA shows profit returns of 3-4 percent.

TAPE 03-13, SIDE A
Number 0010

STEPHEN CONN appl auded HB 10 and inforned the conmttee that he
could not have worked as the executive director of the Al aska
Public Interest Research G oup (AKPIRG had he not had access to
the benefits of the teacher retirenment system He pointed out
that everyone knows people who struggle wth paying nedical
bills and prescriptions. He added that the state [popul ation]
is aging. M. Conn described HB 10 as a perfect exanple of the
state trying to do new things and experinent wth possible
solutions. He acknow edged that sone of the state's experinents
have succeeded while others have not. M. Conn related that
AkPI RG and the Alaska Injured Wrkers Aliance are in dire need
of health insurance benefits in order to attract and retain
enpl oyees. M. Conn concluded by noting his support for HB 10.

Nunber 0240

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 24, 2003



JUDY MLLER informed the conmttee that she is interested in
devel oping a sole proprietorship [business], but she noted that
she cannot obtain health insurance. She indicated that wthout
| egi slation such as HB 10, she w Il probably have to work for
soneone else to obtain health insurance. She predicted that a
|l ot of private businesses could [thrive] in this state if
sonething like HB 10 were offered. Ms. Mller related her
belief that she would be a desirable candidate for this pool
Furthernmore, she noted her willingness to [pay higher prem uns]
to support older people or people with problens who would be
joining this pool.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that those sole proprietors
who qualify as a nonprofit under the criteria specified in the
bill would qualify [for this pool].

Nunmber 0536

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that in a market share breakdown
from the Division of I|nsurance, Prenera Blue Cross has covered
lives of 13,369 or 55.9 percent of the small group market.

KATIE CAMPBELL, Life & Health Actuary, D vision of |Insurance
Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent (DCED), confirnmed
t hat nunber.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, citing the sane source, stated that
Principal Life has 4,900 covered lives, AETNA 2,100 covered
lives, United Health Care 2,400 covered lives, and Trust Mark
| nsurance 1,500 covered lives. Those are the top five providers
in the state, he added. The renmaining small group providers
anount to about 24,793 covered |ives.

Nunmber 0607

M5. CAMPBELL confirmed those nunbers. However, she pointed out
that those nunbers are provided by the insurance conpanies on a
voluntary basis and there is no way to audit the data on covered
lives.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about the validity of the chief
criticismof HB 10 that it could push underwiters out of the
state.

M5. CAWMPBELL said it's a possibility because without the ability

[by current underwiters] to reduce the premuns, there wll be
peopl e who are already insured who will nove [into this pool].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rel ated that one of the underwiters for
the State of Alaska had warned that if it did not win the bid
under HB 10, it mght |eave the [Al aska] narket. Due to the
current language in the bill and the size of the nmarket share,
Representati ve Rokeberg said he believes there is sone nerit to
t he concern.

Nunmber 0780

M5. CAMPBELL inforned the committee that about two years ago
both Enployers Health and Guardian Life pulled out of the snal

group market in the state. At the tine, they were the second
and fourth largest insurers in the state. The conpanies said
that they couldn't nmake a profit in Al aska. Ms. Canpbell said
she believes that there is potential for shifting [of insurers
out of the Alaska market] with HB 10, and shifting is probably

the |largest concern. In this case, the pool wouldn't be
operating under the sanme rules that the insurance conpani es have
in terms of deciding who wll be insured under the pool.
Therefore, there will be people coming into this pool that the
i nsurance conpanies will underwite, or rate up, or perhaps not
even wite at all, and thus it would be expected to be a

sonmewhat hi gher risk [pool].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG requested that Ms. Canpbell speak to the
problem the state has in attracting [insurance conpanies] to
wite health insurance in the state. He also requested that she
speak to the inpact of HB 10 on that market entry.

Nunmber 0875

M5. CAMPBELL pointed out that the entire population of Al aska is
like a small city in California; thus Alaska is a really snal

base for insurance conpany operations. Therefore, insurance
conpanies need to sell enough business to cover fixed costs of
operating in Al aska. Wth regard to size, Alaska isn't an
attractive nmarket. Al so, providing coverage in the rural
comunities has its own conplications. Ms. Canpbell informed
the commttee that there was a U S. Ceneral Accounting Ofice
(GAO) report that illustrated that Alaska isn't unusual in terns

of the nunber of insurers or concentration of insurers in the
smal | group market.

Number 0950

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG turned attention to an anendnent | abel ed
23-LS003\I1.1, Craver, 2/24/03, which read:

Page 3, following line 10:

Insert a new subsection to read:

"(e) The departnent shall Iimt the coverage of
busi nesses as defined in this section to a maxi num of
6, 000 covered lives, subject to the foll ow ng:

(1) the division of insurance shall adjust
the limtation of coverage every two years so that the

limtation is the nunber of Ilives in the market
represented by businesses multiplied by the estimted
percentage of wuninsured in that group; lives covered
by a policy issued to a business under this section
shal | be included in estimting the nunber of
uni nsured; and

(2) any enpl oyees of an enpl oyer

participating in group coverage as a business under
this section may be added to coverage at any tine
regardl ess of the maxi num nunber of covered |ives set
by the Ilimtation of coverage established by or
determ ned under this subsection.™

Rel etter the follow ng subsections accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that he reviewed the base I|ine
nunber of 24,793, [the nunber of lives covered by other
i nsurance conpanies, as described earlier]. He noted that the
i nsurance conpanies are curiously absent from this neeting. He
expl ained that from conversations with various insurers, he is
concerned that if the size of this pool isn't restricted, there
is the risk of running an insurance conpany out of the state

Therefore, [his amendnent] proposes a fornmula based on the
information he has obtained about the snmall group narket from
the Division of Insurance. He said that the fornula is based on
the assunption of 25,000 covered lives in the market, which is
then nultiplied by the presuned 19 percent of uninsured citizens
in the state. The forrmula uses a nunber that he derived from
hi s busi ness experience, 20 percent, as a share of the small

group market that would apply to this |egislation. Ther ef or e,
the fornula is as follows: "25,000 tines 19 percent equals Y; Y
is 20 percent of the market; Y equals 6,000 lives."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that the anendnent specifies that
the departnent shall set the |limt of coverage of businesses to
t he maxi mum of 6,000 covered |ives. However, he said he didn't
believe that the drafter [of the amendnent] had acconplished

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 24, 2003



that. He explained that the fornmula specifies the extent of the
smal | busi ness portion. Ther ef or e, there would be no
restriction on the nonprofits as qualified entities, only the
smal | busi ness portion. He said he hoped that this would |eave
80 percent of the small business narket available for private
sector underwiting and allay fears [about harm ng the insurance
i ndustry].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG descri bed his anendnent as concept ual
Number 1280

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD related his anecdotal belief that nore
smal | business enployees are wuninsured than |arge business
enpl oyees. He said that until he sees the [division' s] nunbers,
he woul d have to dispute Representative Rokeberg' s formula. He
reiterated the need for HB 10 to help those who aren't covered
by health insurance. However, [this anendnment] Ilimts the
nunber of people covered.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that HB 10 could cover 6, 000-12, 000
people in nonprofit entities for a total of 18,000 covered
lives. He said he is trying to find a bal ance between neeting
the needs of people without risking the insurance underwiter
market in the state. Wthout an anendnent such as the proposed
conceptual amendnent, the chances of HB 10 passing are slim he
sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD expressed the desire to revisit [the
issue of limting the nunber of people covered] if the nmarket is
realigned to the point that an insurance conpany pulls out. He
noted his preference not to place limts before it is known if
the market realigns.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renmarked that this bill isn't a pilot
program with [room for] experinentation. He noted that he
wanted to include this anmendnent in a CS in order to snoke out
the insurance conpanies so that they would talk wth the
comittee.

[ House Bill 10 was hel d over.]

ADJ OURNMVENT

Nunber 1489

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved that the committee adjourn.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 24, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ect ed.

A roll <call vote was taken. Representati ves Quttenberg,
Crawf ord, Dahlstrom Rokeberg, Lynn, and Anderson voted in favor
of the notion to adjourn. Representative Gatto voted against
it. Therefore, by a vote of 6-1, the House Labor and Comrerce
Standi ng Conm ttee neeting was adjourned at 5:15 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 24, 2003



